
 

 

AGENDA 
 

Lower Neuse Basin Association, Inc.® 

Neuse River Compliance Association, Inc.® 
 

May 2, 2024 
Smithfield, N. C. 

10:00 a.m. 
 
 

 Welcome, Roll Call, and Introduction of Guests    
 
* Member Introductions 
 

 Approval of Minutes for February 1, 2024 (AI) (pages 2 – 4) –   
 

 LNBA/NRCA Financials –    
 
* February, March, and April, 2024 Treasurer’s Reports (AI) (pages 5-6) –  
* Contracts & Agreements (AI) -  
      McLawhorn Law -  
      Executive Director Services Agreement – (page 7) 
 

 Neuse Basin Modeling Update – (page 8-9)  
 

 LNBA Updates - 
 
* Sampling Report – January, February, March, and April 2024 – (page 10) 
* Approval of DWR MOA with LNBA (AI) – (page 11)   
* LNBA Annual Report for 2023 – (pages 12-13) 
 

 NRCA Updates -  
 
* NRCA Permit Renewal Update - 
* NRCA 2023 Annual Report – (pages 14-17) 
 

 LNBA/NRCA Training Workshop for 2024 – July 30th in Raleigh; August 1 in Kinston 
 

 Member Reports -   
 

 Next Meeting and Adjourn – September 5, 2024, City of Goldsboro, Goldsboro, N. C.      
 
 
 Action Items (AI) 
 



 

 

Lower Neuse Basin Association®/Neuse River Compliance Association® 
February 1, 2024 Meeting Minutes 

City of Wilson, Wilson, N. C.   
 
Attending: 
 
Chuck Smithwick  Contentnea MSD Jonathan Bulla  Town of Cary 
Mike Graham   Duke Energy   Josh Cummings  Town of Cary  
Dan McLawhorn  McLawhorn Legal Ed Buchan  City of Raleigh 
Lorrie Stagner  Aqua, N. C.  Brian Leavitt  Town of Benson 
Reggie Hicks  City of Durham  Joshua Baird  Town of Clayton 
David White  Town of Clayton  Adam Stephenson Town of Fuquay-Varina 
Heather Adams  Town of Fuquay-Varina Anthony Futrell  Carolina Water Service  
Tony Konsul  Carolina Water Service  Jeff Mahagan  Town of Hillsborough 
Jimmy Pridgen  City of Wilson  Jay Murray   Town of Benson 
Glenn Dunn  Poyner & Spruill  Jason Parker  Town of Cary 
Arthur Hough   City of New Bern Raj Laddha  CMSMinds 
Shelby Arellano  CovationBio  Carol Davis  CovationBio 
Dan Wall  Johnston County Marty Lebo  WSP, Inc. 
Jay Sauber  Sauber WQC  Mark Vander Borgh NC DWR 
Ron Boquist  Waypoint Anal.  Andrew Mlot  City of Wilson 
Barrett Jenkins  Restoration Systems Kenny Stevens  City of Kinston (virtual) 
Haywood Phthisic LNBA/NRCA 
 
The Vice Chair, Chuck Smithwick, called the meeting to order and welcomed everyone. The roll was called 
and there were 13 of 19 members present representing the LNBA and 16 of 24 members present 
representing the NRCA. There was a quorum present for both associations and guests were introduced 
and recognized. 
 
Board Minutes – The Board Minutes for the November 2, 2023 meeting were presented. Being no 
revisions, Dan Wall made the motion to approve, seconded by Ed Buchan, and approved by the Boards. 
 
Officer Elections for the Remaining Term (May, 2025) – The Vice Chair reported that our Chair and 
Treasurer retired in December thus the need to fill the officer positions for the remainder of their terms, May 
2025. Haywood reported an email was sent to announcing this meeting was the annual meeting for 2024 
and officer elections would occur. An email was sent to the membership asking if anyone would serve or  
like to serve as an officer. The following members have agreed to serve: Chuck Smithwick, Chair; Ed 
Buchan, Vice Chair; and Jimmy Pridgen, Treasurer. The Vice Chair asked if there were any nominations 
from the floor and, being none, asked if there was a motion to approve the three nominees as presented. 
Jonathan Bulla with the motion to approve, seconded by Kenny Stevens, and approved by the Boards. 
 
LNBA/NRCA Financials – Treasurer’s Report – Haywood presented the Treasurer's Report for the period 
of November, December, 2023, and January, 2024 to the Board. As of January 31st, the LNBA account 
balance is $294,910.44 and NRCA account balance is $386,963.36. Haywood noted that the report was 
prepared prior to the bank statement close so the report did not include savings account interest for 
January. Ed Buchan made the motion to approve the reports as presented, seconded by Bert Sherman, 
and approved by the Boards, respectively. 
 

hmp3r
Text Box
 2.




 

 

Website Update and Maintenance Agreement – Haywood reported the updated website is online and 
functioning. With that, a new maintenance agreement is needed to support the website and an agreement 
with River Delta Consulting, Inc. (RDC) is presented for the Boards’ consideration. Raj Ladda, with RDC, 
was introduced to the membership. Raj led the update of the website and will provide ongoing support. 
There will be an agreement with the LNBA and the NRCA for the site maintenance with each agreement 
having a $2,000 annual limit. The hourly rate for the maintenance service will be $150.00 with the 
maintenance billed quarterly. Following discussion, Jimmy Pridgen made the motion to approve the 
agreements and authorized the Chair to execute it, seconded by Ed Buchan, and approved by the Boards. 
 
FY 2024-25 Recommended Budget and Membership Dues – Haywood presented the FY 2024-25 LNBA 
and NRCA budgets and membership fees for the Boards’ consideration. The budgets for both associations 
are presented with little increase. For the LNBA, Duke Energy had an increase in permitted flow in their 
recent renewal for account for the amount of water being removed in the coal ash excavations and removal 
from the site. The permitted flow increased from 2.16 mgd to 10.16 mgd which will shift member dues until 
this coal ash removal is completed. The NRCA had normal shifts in discharged total nitrogen discharges so 
small variations in dues are normal. Following discussion, Dan Wall made the motion to approve the 
budgets and membership dues as presented, seconded by Jimmy Pridgen, and approved by the Boards.    
 
Neuse Watershed Modeling Update – Dr. Marty Lebo with WSP, Inc. updated the Board on the Neuse 
Watershed modeling. Marty anticipates delivery of the model to DWR will be in early spring and his team 
would begin review of the model work. 
 
Low Dissolved Oxygen Legislation Update – Jay Sauber gave the Board an update on changes that 
were made in the last legislative session. Jay noted that this will be of particular interest to members who 
discharge to waters classified as swamp waters. The amendment states “for surface water of the State that 
have naturally occurring low dissolved oxygen levels permitted discharges shall not cause a reduction in 
dissolved oxygen levels of such surface waters of more than 0.10 mg/L below the approved modeled in-
stream dissolved oxygen level at total permitted capacity”.     
 
LNBA Updates – 
 
Work continues on the Lower Neuse River Monitoring Service Contract No. 6 with Waypoint Analytical. All 
sampling was completed in November and December with the exceptions listed below: 
 
November 2023 
 
11/06/23 - J4690000 (Middle Creek, Sunset Lake near Holly Springs (SR-1152) - Unable to collect due to bridge construction. 
 
11/27/23 – J5630000 (Little River at Riley Hill Road near Zebulon) - Unable to collect due to bridge construction.  
 
December 2023  
 
12/04/23 - J4690000 (Middle Creek, Sunset Lake near Holly Springs (SR-1152) - Unable to collect due to bridge construction. 
 
12/20/23 – J5630000 (Little River at Riley Hill Road near Zebulon) - Unable to collect due to bridge construction.  
 
All invoices have been processed and paid through December, 2023. 
 
 

hmp3r
Text Box
 3.




 

 

Renewal of the Memorandum of Agreement with DWR – (July 31, 2024) – I have received the draft 
agreement from DWR. The time frame for renewing the agreement will be the final agreement will be 
presented to the LNBA Board at the May 2, 2024 meeting for approval and proceed to have all members 
sign the document. 
 
 
NRCA Updates –  
 
Operator Certification Renewal Fees – Haywood noted that with the increase in the operator certification 
renewals (increasing from $50 to $50 per certification) may cause issues with operators not renewing their 
certifications upon retirement thus the statewide pool of certified operators may diminish in time. There is 
discussion of seeking an amendment to this legislation. 
 
LNBA and NRCA Delegates – Haywood provided the Board with a list of delegates and asked for all 
members to review and update their delegates. Haywood noted he would send an email to confirm the 
member delegates in the near future.     
 
NRCA Annual Report for 2023 – Haywood reported the draft NRCA annual report for 2023 will be sent to 
the membership in the next week or so and asked that everyone review their data for accuracy. 
 
Annual Training Workshop Committee – Haywood reported the committee will be beginning work on the 
2024 workshop and if any members would like to participate on the committee to please contact Haywood. 
 
LNBA/NRCA Delegates – Haywood reminded the membership to please keep the membership delegates 
updated by notifying him.  
 
The next meeting is scheduled for May 2, 2024 at 10:00 hosted by Johnston County Utility Dept., 
Smithfield, N. C. With no further business, the meeting was adjourned.  
  

hmp3r
Text Box
 4.




Lower Neuse Basin Association, Inc. / Neuse River Compliance Association, Inc.
Treasurer's Report

5/1/2024
LNBA

Balance Forward: (checking per bank statement - 1/31/2024) Checking 118,304.87$                
Savings 177,070.81                   

Debits: Waypoint Analytical, Inc. (LNBA, Invoices) 27,339.90$                   
Waypoint Analytical, Inc. (Raleigh, Invoices) 4,510.98                       
River Delta Consulting 15,000.00                     
MFG Consulting, LLC 180.00                          
PCi (Invoices) 5,216.88                       

Total Debits 52,247.76$                   

Credits: Interest (checking) 36.10$                          
Interest (savings) 1,312.04                       
Membership Dues -                                 

Checking Account Balance (per bank statement -4/30/2024) Checking 66,093.21$                   
 Savings 178,382.85                   

Total LNBA Account Balance 244,476.06$                

NRCA 

Balance Forward: (per bank statement -1/31/2024) Checking 101,375.16$                
Savings 286,328.01                   

Debits: PCi (Invoices) 9,691.00$                     
River Delta Consulting 15,000.00                     
WSP. Inc. 5,900.85                       
Sauber Water Quality Consulting 2,013.00                       
McLawhorn Law Office 1,600.00                       

Total: 34,204.85$                   

Credits: Transfer from Checking to Savings Acc't -$                               
Interest (Savings) 2,119.98                       
Interest (Checking) 32.93                             
Membership Dues -                                 

Account Balance (per bank statement - 4/30/2024) Checking 67,203.24$                   
   Savings 288,447.99                   

Total NRCA Account Balance 355,651.23$                

hmp3r
Text Box
 5.




LN
B

A
/N

R
C

A
 Y

ea
r t

o 
D

at
e 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s 

fo
r F

Y 
20

23
-2

4

D
at

e:
 4

/2
9/

20
24

LN
B

A
M

on
ito

rin
g

ED
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Tr
ai

ni
ng

A
dm

in
Le

ga
l

W
eb

 S
er

vi
ce

s
C

on
su

lta
nt

To
ta

l
R

al
ei

gh

Ju
ly

, 2
02

3
8,

11
3.

30
$ 

   
   

1,
55

9.
75

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
9,

67
3.

05
$ 

   
   

1,
50

3.
66

$ 
   

   

Au
gu

st
8,

11
3.

30
   

   
   

1,
83

3.
31

   
   

   
81

8.
40

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
0.

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,9
45

.0
1

   
   

 
1,

50
3.

66
   

   
   

Se
pt

em
be

r
8,

11
3.

30
   

   
   

1,
49

0.
86

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
0.

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

78
4.

16
   

   
   

 
1,

50
3.

66
   

   
   

O
ct

ob
er

8,
11

3.
30

   
   

   
1,

30
0.

00
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
65

0.
00

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

63
.3

0
   

   
 

1,
50

3.
66

   
   

   

N
ov

em
be

r
8,

11
3.

30
   

   
   

1,
46

4.
84

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

57
8.

14
   

   
   

 
1,

50
3.

66
   

   
   

D
ec

em
be

r
8,

11
3.

30
   

   
   

1,
61

3.
60

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

72
6.

90
   

   
   

 
1,

50
3.

66
   

   
   

Ja
nu

ar
y,

 2
02

4
8,

11
3.

30
   

   
   

1,
69

2.
91

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
0.

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

98
6.

21
   

   
   

 
1,

50
3.

66
   

   
   

Fe
br

ua
ry

8,
11

3.
30

   
   

   
1,

93
9.

82
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

01
3.

00
   

   
 

12
,0

66
.1

2
   

   
 

1,
50

3.
66

   
   

   

M
ar

ch
8,

11
3.

30
   

   
   

1,
68

6.
04

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
,0

00
.0

0
   

  
24

,7
99

.3
4

   
   

 
1,

50
3.

66
   

   
   

Ap
ril

8,
11

3.
30

   
   

   
1,

59
1.

02
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
70

4.
32

   
   

   
 

1,
50

3.
66

   
   

   

M
ay

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   

Ju
ne

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   

To
ta

l
81

,1
33

.0
0

$ 
   

 
16

,1
72

.1
5

$ 
   

 
81

8.
40

$ 
   

   
 

65
0.

00
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

54
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

17
,0

13
.0

0
$ 

  
11

6,
32

6.
55

$ 
  

15
,0

36
.6

0
$ 

   
 

Bu
dg

et
97

,3
60

.0
0

$ 
   

 
21

,5
00

.0
0

$ 
   

 
2,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
 

1,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

 
10

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

1,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

18
,4

00
.0

0
$ 

  
16

9,
80

4.
00

$ 
  

18
,0

44
.0

0
$ 

   
 

N
R

C
A

Pe
rm

it/
G

ra
nt

ED
 S

er
vi

ce
s

Tr
ai

ni
ng

A
dm

in
Le

ga
l

W
eb

 S
er

vi
ce

s
C

on
su

lta
nt

To
ta

l
W

SP
, I

nc
.

 

Ju
ly

, 2
02

3
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

2,
33

9.
00

$ 
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

18
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

14
0.

00
$ 

   
   

 
2,

65
9.

00
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   

Au
gu

st
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
75

2.
00

   
   

   
1,

27
0.

90
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

02
2.

90
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

Se
pt

em
be

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
23

4.
00

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

23
4.

00
   

   
   

 
42

0.
75

   
   

   
   

O
ct

ob
er

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

70
0.

00
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
65

0.
00

   
   

   
 

60
0.

00
   

   
   

   
18

0.
00

   
   

   
   

  
54

9.
00

   
   

   
 

3,
67

9.
00

   
   

   
 

97
0.

50
   

   
   

   

N
ov

em
be

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
17

2.
00

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

.
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
0.

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

35
2.

00
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

D
ec

em
be

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
42

1.
00

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
0.

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

60
1.

00
   

   
   

 
71

7.
45

   
   

   
   

Ja
nu

ar
y,

 2
02

4
4,

62
5.

00
   

   
   

2,
54

0.
00

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

16
5.

00
   

   
   

 
69

0.
73

   
   

   
   

Fe
br

ua
ry

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

60
4.

00
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
60

0.
00

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
20

4.
00

   
   

   
 

29
1.

75
   

   
   

   

M
ar

ch
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
13

1.
00

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
,0

00
.0

0
   

  
18

,1
31

.0
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

Ap
ril

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

95
6.

00
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
95

6.
00

   
   

   
 

5,
90

0.
85

   
   

   

M
ay

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   

Ju
ne

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   

To
ta

l
4,

62
5.

00
$ 

   
   

25
,8

49
.0

0
$ 

   
 

1,
27

0.
90

$ 
   

 
65

0.
00

$ 
   

   
 

2,
20

0.
00

$ 
   

  
72

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
15

,6
89

.0
0

$ 
  

51
,0

03
.9

0
$ 

   
 

8,
99

2.
03

$ 
   

   

Bu
dg

et
4,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

45
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
 

2,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

 
1,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
 

16
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
1,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
19

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
  

89
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
 

30
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
 

hmp3r
Text Box
 6.




Executive Director Services Contract 
Finance Committee Recommendation 

5/02/2024 

 
Executive Committee Members – Chuck Smithwick, Contentnea MSD; Ed Buchan, Raleigh Water; 
Jimmy Pridgen, City of Wilson; Kenny Stevens, City of Kinston. 
 
The Executive Committee met (via Teams call on April 8, 2024) with Haywood Phthisic of Phthisic 
Consulting, Inc. to discuss the renewal of the executive director services contract. Haywood presented a 
draft contract agreement with minor revisions from the previous agreement. Those revisions 
are: 

 For Fy 2023-24 the consultant hourly rate will remain at $75.00 per hour. Beginning on June 01, 
2024 the rate will increase to $85.00 per hour for the remainder on the contract. 
 

 Intuit, Inc. has revised its pricing structure for QuickBooks to $20 per month (online service, no CD 
of the software is available). PCi has asked to be reimbursed for that cost at $240 annually in 
advance. Conference reimbursement has been reduced from $1,500 to $1,000, annually.   
 

 The agreement term is 3 years with a 60 day notice to terminate by both parties.  

Following discussion, the committee recommends renewal of the agreement as presented.  
  
 
   
 
 

 

hmp3r
Text Box
 7.




 

      

 
www.wsp.com 

MEMO 

TO: Haywood Phthisic 

FROM: Martin E. Lebo 

SUBJECT: Neuse Watershed Model Review Update 

DATE: April 30, 2024 

 

PROJECT OBJECTIVE 

The overall objective for the project is to review the watershed model being developed by 
RESPEC under contract with NCDEQ for use in evaluating transport factors for Nitrogen in 
the Neuse River basin.   

BACKGROUND 

The authorized project focuses resources on evaluating the calibration of key components 
of the watershed model when the calibration is nearly complete.  Key components are how 
the model simulates flow throughout the watershed, how the model simulates the 
deposition and erosion of particles, and how the model simulates the transformations of 
different forms of nitrogen.  

The WSP team participated in an initial discussion with the model development team 
(RESPEC) and staff from NCDWR on September 25, 2023 on progress in model development.  
Access to modeling files during the development process was requested and has been 
provided for flow, sediment, and nitrogen components.  

RECENT ACTIVITY 

The WSP project team provided a review of the flow calibration to the modeling team and 
is in the process of reviewing calibration plots for sediments and nutrients.  With the 
calibration information for nutrients, an updated flow calibration was provided.  
Completed and in progress activities for the project are:  

 October 31, 2023 – review of Point Source representation in the model provided.  

 November 30, 2023 – requested schedule for modeling file access to RESPEC.  

 December 5, 2023 – participation in Stakeholder Meeting #2 hosted by NCDWR.  

 January 11, 2024 – access to modeling files provided through SharePoint site. 

 February 27, 2024 – WSP provided a memo to client on the flow calibration with 
suggested improvements to the calibration.  

hmp3r
Text Box
 8.




 

Page 2 
 

 March 23, 2024 – access to modeling files for the updated flow calibration and the 
calibration of sediment and nutrients was provided to WSP.  

 April 24, 2024 – a targeted review of the updated flow calibration was completed 
focusing on key mainstem and tributary locations.  The updated calibration had 
improvements in the areas identified by WSP.  The review will be included in the 
project memo to be completed for the current calibration review.    

ANTICIPATED SCHEDULE 

The near-term focus will be to complete review of the nutrient and sediment components 
of the watershed model and prepare comments on how the calibration may be improved. 
Comments on the model calibration will be summarized in a second project memo 
provided for client review before providing to the model development team.  Completion 
of the review is anticipated in May 2024.   

hmp3r
Text Box
 9.




Lower Neuse Basin Association ® 
 
TO:  Board Members 
FROM:  Haywood Phthisic, Executive Director 
SUBJECT:  Sampling/Monitoring Report for May 2, 2024 Board Meeting 
DATE:  April 30, 2024 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Work continues on the Lower Neuse River Monitoring Service Contract No. 6 with Waypoint Analytical. All 
sampling was completed by Waypoint in January, February, March, and April with the exceptions listed 
below: 
 
January 2024 
 
01/30/24 – J5630000 (Little River at Riley Hill Road near Zebulon) - Unable to collect due to bridge construction.  
 
February 2024  
 
2/08/24 - J4690000 (Middle Creek, Sunset Lake near Holly Springs (SR-1152) - Unable to collect due to bridge 
construction. 
 
March 2024 
 
03/04/2024 - J4520000 (Swift Creek at Steel Bridge Rd nr Smithfield) - Unable to collect due to construction. 
03/21/2024 - J5630000 (Little River at Riley Hill Rd nr Zebulon) - Unable to collect due to bridge construction. 
 
April 2024 
 
4/25/24 - J4690000 (Middle Creek, Sunset Lake near Holly Springs (SR-1152) - Unable to collect due to bridge 
construction. 
 
All invoices have been processed and paid through March, 2024. 
 
 
Memorandum of Agreement with DWR (July 31, 2024) – The draft agreement from DWR 
has been received and distributed to the Executive Committee for review. The signature authority 
list has been updated so please review the list. If any changes occur related to the signature 
authority between now and completion of the MOA agreement please contact me immediately.  
 
 

hmp3r
Text Box
 10.




NPDES LNBA Permittees Authorized Representative County Region HUC
Permit # Ownership and Facility and Title (8 Digit)

NC0003417 Duke Energy Progress, LLC Jeffery D. Hines Wayne WaRO 3020201
H. F. Lee Energy Complex General Manager

NC0003760 CovationBio, Inc. David Suggs Lenoir WaRO 3020202

NC0020389 Town of Benson - Benson WWTP Kimberly Picket Johnston RRO 3020201
Public Utility Director

NC0021253 City of Havelock - Havelock WWTP Chris McGee Craven WaRO 3020204
City Manager

NC0021644 Town of LaGrange - LaGrange WWTP Shawn Condon Lenoir WaRO 3020202
Town Manager

NC0023906 City of Wilson - Wilson WWTP Grant Goings Wilson RRO 3020203
City Manager

NC0023949 City of Goldsboro - Goldsboro WWTP Matthew Livingston Wayne WaRO 3020202
City Manager

NC0024236 City of Kinston - Kinston Regional WWTF Steve Miller Lenoir WaRO 3020202
Director of Public Services

NC0025348 City of New Bern - New Bern WWTP Foster Hughes Craven WaRO 3020204
City Manager

NC0025453 Town of Clayton - Little Creek WWTP Rich Cappola Johnston RRO 3020201
Town Manager

NC0029033 City of Raleigh - Neuse River WWTP Edward Buchan Wake RRO 3020201
Assistant Utility Director

NC0029572 Town of Farmville - Farmville WWTP David Hodgkins Pitt WaRO 3020203
Town Manager

NC0030716 Johnston County Rick J. Hester Johnston RRO 3020201
Central Johnston County Regional WWTP County Manager

NC0030759 City of Raleigh - Smith Creek WWTP Edward Buchan Wake RRO 3020201
Assistant Utility Director

NC0032077 Contentnea Metropolitan Sewerage District Charles M. Smithwick, Jr. Pitt WaRO 3020203
Contentnea MSD WWTP District Manager

NC0048879 Town of Cary - North WWTP Jonathan Bulla Wake RRO 3020201
North Cary WRF Manager

NC0064050 Town of Apex - Apex WRF Randal E. Vosburg Wake RRO 3020201
Town Manager

NC0064891 Town of Kenly - Kenly Regional WWTP Tony Sears Johnston RRO 3020201
Interim Town Manager

NC0065102 Town of Cary - South WWTP Jarrod Buchanan Wake RRO 3020201
South Cary WRF Manager

NC0066516 Town of Fuquay Varina Michael Wagner Wake RRO 3020201
Terrible Creek WWTP Town Manager

NC0020842 Town of Snow Hill Todd Whaley Greene WaRO 3020203
Snow Hill WWTF Town Manager

NC0079316 City of Raleigh - Little Creek WWTP Edward Buchan Wake RRO 3020203
Assistant Utility Director

NC0084735 Johnston County Rick J. Hester Johnston RRO 3020201
Johnston County WTP County Manager

hmp3r
Text Box
 11.




0.
0

0.
5

1.
0

1.
5

2.
0

2.
5

3.
0

3.
5

4.
0

Total Nitrogen Concentration (mg/L)

LN
BA

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
St

at
io

ns

20
23

 L
N

BA
 M

on
ito

rin
g 

St
at

io
ns

 T
ot

al
 N

itr
og

en
 A

nn
ua

l A
ve

ra
ge

 C
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

ns

TK
N

_N
 (m

g/
L)

N
O

2_
N

O
3_

N
 (m

g/
L)

J4
08

00
00

-P
op

la
r C

re
ek

J6
04

45
00

 -
Be

ar
 C

re
ek

 (d
ow

ns
tr

ea
m

)

J6
05

50
00

 -
M

os
le

y 
Cr

ee
k

J6
04

44
00

-B
ea

r C
re

ek
 (u

ps
tr

ea
m

)
J7

69
50

00
- L

itt
le

 C
on

te
nt

ne
a

Cr
ee

k

hmp3r
Text Box
 12.




0.
73

0.
73

0.
74

0.
74

0.
68

0.
83

1.
01

1.
11

0.
90

0.
73

0.
85

1.
01

0.
77

0.
69

0.
65

0.
96

1.
18

0.
79

0.
80

0.
76

1.
09

0.
56

0.
54

0.
61

0.
49

0.
52

0.
53

0.
53

0.
64

0.
47

0.
42

0.
48

0.
64

0.
68

0.
63

0.
58

0.
57

0.
60

0.
52

0.
63

0.
48

0.
45

2
0

0
3

2
0

0
4

2
0

0
5

2
0

0
6

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

1
0

2
0

1
1

2
0

1
2

2
0

1
3

2
0

1
4

2
0

1
5

2
0

1
6

2
0

1
7

2
0

1
8

2
0

1
9

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
2

2
0

2
3

TOTAL NITROGEN CONCENTRATION (MG/L)

YE
AR

20
03

-2
02

3 
A

V
ER

A
G

E 
TO

TA
L 

N
IT

R
O

G
EN

 C
O

N
CE

N
TR

AT
IO

N
S 

FO
R

 L
N

B
A

 S
A

M
PL

IN
G

 S
IT

ES
TK

N
_N

 (m
g/

L)
N

O
2_

N
O

3_
N

 (m
g/

L)

Av
g.

 T
KN

_N
 =

 0
.8

5 
m

g/
L 

   
 A

vg
.N

O
2_

N
O

3_
N

 =
 0

.5
5 

m
g/

L

hmp3r
Text Box
 13.




N
E

U
S

E
 R

IV
E

R
 C

O
M

P
LI

A
N

C
E

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

N
 

T
o
ta

l N
it
ro

g
e

n
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 fo
r 

2
0

2
3

 

D
at

e:
 M

a
rc

h
 2

5,
 2

02
4 

P
ag

e 
1 

o
f 

5 

N
P

D
E

S
 P

e
rm

it 
#:

 N
C

C
00

00
1 

E
N

D
 O

F
 P

iP
E

 
E

S
T

U
A

R
Y

 

F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 

N
P

D
E

S
 

P
e
rm

it 

#
 

P
e
rm

it 

F
lo

w
 

(M
G

D
) 

20
23

 

A
vg

. F
lo

w
 

(M
G

D
) 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

TN
 

A
llo

ca
tio

n
 

(L
b

s/
Y

r.
) 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

T
N

 

D
is

ch
a
rg

e
 

(L
b
s/

Y
r.

) 

T
ra

ns
po

rt
 

F
a

ct
o

r 

20
23

 

Le
as

e 

(E
st

ua
ry

 L
b
s.

) 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

E
st

ua
ry

 

A
llo

ca
tio

n 

A
d
ju

st
e
d
 T

N
 

A
llo

ca
tio

n
 2

0
2

3
 

(L
b
s/

Y
r.

) 

20
23

 T
N

 

D
el

iv
er

y 

(L
b

s/
Y

r.
) 

%
 o

f 

E
st

u
a
ry

 

A
llo

ca
tio

n
 

S
G

W
A

S
A

 
N

C
00

26
82

4 
5.

50
0 

1.
53

8 
22

,4
20

 
1

1
,8

8
8

 
10

%
 

0
 

2,
24

2 
0

 
1,

18
9 

53
 

T
ow

n 
o

f H
ill

sb
o

ro
u

g
h

 
N

C
00

26
43

3 
3.

00
0 

1
.1

3
8
 

10
,4

22
 

6
,2

0
7

 
10

%
 

0
 

1,
04

2 
0 

6
2

1
 

60
 

C
ity

 o
f D

u
rh

a
m

 
N

C
00

23
84

1 
20

.0
00

 
9.

22
3 

97
,6

65
 

7
0

,5
1

3
 

10
%

 
0

 
9,

76
7 

0 
7
,0

5
1
 

72
 

T
ow

n 
o
f A

p
e

x 
N

C
00

64
05

0 
3.

60
0 

1
.2

6
7

 
40

,5
47

 
1
7
,2

5
7
 

50
%

 
0

 
20

,2
74

 

0 0 0 0 0 0 CO 000000 

8,
62

8 
43

 

T
ow

n 
o

f B
en

so
n 

N
C

00
20

38
9 

1.
90

0 
1.

08
2 

33
,0

70
 

1
0
,8

5
6
 

50
%

 
0

 
16

,5
35

 
5,

42
8 

33
 

T
ow

n 
o
f C

ar
y 

— 
N

o
rt

h
 

N
C

00
48

87
9 

12
.0

00
 

6.
14

2 
14

3,
24

6 
3
5
,1

5
1
 

50
%

 
0

 
71

,6
23

 
17

,5
75

 
25

 

T
ow

n 
o

f C
ar

y 
— 

S
o
u
th

 
N

C
00

65
10

2 
12

.8
00

 
5.

19
5 

1
8
0
,2

1
1
 

26
,0

67
 

50
%

 
0

 
90

,1
05

 
13

,0
34

 
1
4
 

C
ity

 o
f R

a
le

ig
h
 —

 S
m

ith
 C

re
ek

 
N

C
00

30
75

9 
3.

00
0 

2.
37

7 
70

,8
14

 
35

,8
02

 
50

%
 

0
 

35
,4

07
 

1
7

,9
0

1
 

5
1
 

C
ity

 o
f R

a
le

ig
h
 —

 N
eu

se
 

N
C

00
29

03
3 

75
.0

00
 

4
7
.9

3
6
 

71
3,

37
3 

33
2,

88
9 

50
%

 
0 

35
6,

68
7 

16
6,

44
4 

55
 

R
a
le

ig
h
 —

 G
ro

un
d 

W
a
te

r 
N

A
 

N
A

 
N

A
 

N
A

 
58

,3
92

 
50

%
 

N
A

 
29

,1
96

 

C
ity

 o
f R

a
le

ig
h
 —

 L
itt

le
 C

re
ek

 
N

C
00

79
31

6 
2.

20
0 

0
.9

1
7

 
26

,6
60

 
5,

40
6 

50
%

 
0

 
13

,3
30

 
2,

70
3 

20
 

T
ow

n 
o

f C
la

yt
on

 
N

C
00

25
45

3 
2.

50
0 

1
.7

5
1
 

26
,6

36
 

24
,7

73
 

50
%

 
0

 
13

,3
18

 
12

,3
86

 
93

 

N
eu

se
 C

ol
on

y,
 (

A
qu

a 
N

C
) 

N
C

00
64

56
4 

0.
35

0 
0

.2
5

1
 

8,
44

7 
5,

89
0 

50
%

 
0

 
4,

22
4 

2,
94

5 
70

 

Jo
hn

st
on

 C
o
u
n
ty

 
N

C
00

30
71

6 
9.

50
0 

5.
25

7 
73

,4
76

 
38

,4
34

 
50

%
 

0
i 

36
,7

38
 

19
,2

17
 

52
 

T
ow

n 
o
f K

e
n

ly
 

N
C

00
64

89
1 

0.
63

0 
0.

37
5 

7,
09

6 
6,

29
6 

50
%

 
0

 
3,

54
8 

3,
14

8 
89

 

T
ow

n 
o

f F
a
rm

vi
lle

 
N

C
00

29
57

2 
3.

50
0 

1
.0

2
1
 

4
2
,2

1
1
 

4,
53

3 
50

%
 

0
 

21
,1

06
 

2,
26

7 
1

1
 

T
ow

n 
o

f S
no

w
 H

ill
 

N
C

00
20

84
2 

0.
50

0 
0
.2

4
3
 

5,
63

2 
2,

70
3 

50
%

 
0

 
2,

81
6 

1
,3

5
1
 

48
 

C
ity

 o
f W

ils
o
n
 

N
C

00
23

90
6 

14
.0

00
 

8.
02

6 
15

7,
88

6 
4
7
,6

0
8
 

50
%

 
0

 
78

,9
43

 
23

,8
04

 
30

 

D
u

ke
 E

n
e

rg
y 

— 
Le

e 
F

a
ci

lit
y 

N
C

00
03

41
7 

10
.1

60
 

0.
06

9 
3,

26
0 

79
 

70
%

 
0

 
2,

28
2 

0 
55

 
2 

C
ity

 o
f G

o
ld

sb
o
ro

 
N

C
00

23
94

9 
14

.2
00

 
8.

60
7 

19
9,

82
2 

57
,7

04
 

70
%

 
0

 
13

9,
87

6 
0 

40
,3

93
 

29
 

T
ow

n 
o
f L

aG
ra

ng
e 

N
C

00
21

64
4 

0.
75

0 
0
.3

0
9
 

8,
44

7 
3,

91
5 

70
%

 
0

 
5,

91
3 

0 
2,

74
0 

46
 

C
ity

 o
f K

in
st

o
n

 (
R

eg
io

na
l) 

N
C

00
24

23
6 

11
.8

50
 

3.
82

5 
1

2
6

,7
1

1
 

27
,2

25
 

70
%

 
0

 
88

,6
97

 
0

 
19

,0
57

 
2
1
 

C
on

te
nt

ne
a 

M
S

D
 

N
C

00
32

07
7 

3.
50

0 
1.

68
3 

37
,1

00
 

9,
17

2 
70

%
 

10
,7

50
 

25
,9

70
 

1
5
,2

2
0
 

6,
42

0 
42

 

C
ov

at
io

nB
io

, 
In

c.
 

N
C

00
03

76
0 

3.
60

0 
0
.2

2
9
 

25
,4

93
 

3,
41

5 
70

%
 

0
 

17
,8

45
 

0
 

2,
39

0 
1
3
 

C
ity

 o
f N

e
w

 B
e
rn

 
N

C
00

25
34

8 
6.

50
0 

4
.1

2
6

 
64

,2
10

 
4

8
,3

1
8

 
10

0%
 

0
 

64
,2

10
 

0 
48

,3
18

 
75

 

M
C

A
S

 C
he

rr
y 

P
o

in
t 

N
C

00
03

81
6 

3.
50

0 
1
.2

5
8
 

3
9

,4
2

1
 

20
,6

45
 

10
0%

 
0

 
3

9
,4

2
1

 
0 

20
,6

45
 

52
 

C
ity

 o
f H

av
el

oc
k 

N
C

00
21

25
3 

2.
25

0 
1

.2
6

4
 

21
,4

00
 

1
3
,7

4
7
 

10
0%

 
0

 
21

,4
00

 
0

 
13

,7
47

 
64

 

C
ra

ve
n 

C
o
u
n
ty

 
N

C
00

84
46

0 
0.

00
0 

0
.8

6
1

 
0 

3,
75

0 
10

0%
 

4
,2

5
0

 
0 

4
,2

5
0
 

3,
75

0 
88

 

C
ar

ol
in

a 
W

a
te

r 
S

er
vi

ce
. 

In
c.

 
N

C
00

33
11

1 
0.

60
0 

0.
32

5 
11

,2
63

 
17

,0
35

_ 
10

0%
 

_ 
6,

50
01

 
11

,2
63

 
17

,7
63

 
17

,0
35

 
96

 

22
6.

89
0 

11
6.

29
2 

1
 

5
0

9
,4

4
1

 
41

.9
 

T
hi

s 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
R

ep
or

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
co

 
• 

ie
d

 fr
om

 c
o-

pe
rm

itt
ee

 m
em

be
rs

' m
on

th
ly

 d
is

ch
ar

ge
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

re
po

rt
s.

 I
 c

er
tif

y 
th

at
 th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 is
 a

cc
ur

at
e 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

e 
to

 t
he

 b
es

t o
f m

y 
kn

ow
le

dg
e.

 

ao
 

C
ha

rle
s 

S
m

ith
w

ic
k,

 C
h

a
ir
m

a
n

, N
e
u
se

 R
iv

e
r 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 A
ss

o
ci

a
tio

n
 

D
a

te
 

N
O

TE
S

: 
1.

 A
ve

ra
ge

 T
ot

al
 N

itr
oa

en
 C

on
ce

nt
ra

tio
n 

E
nd

 o
f P

ip
e 

by
 N

R
C

A
 M

em
be

rs
 d

ur
in

g 
20

23
: 

2.
51

 
m

g/
L 

2.
 A

ve
ra

ge
 T

ot
al

 N
itr

og
en

 C
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

n 
w

ith
 g

ro
un

d 
w

at
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

in
 2

02
3:

 
2.

67
 

m
g/

L 

3.
 N

R
C

A
's

 A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t P
re

pa
re

d 
B

y 
H

ay
w

oo
d 

M
. P

ht
hi

si
c,

 II
I. 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 

4 
M

on
th

ly
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 a
dj

us
te

d 
as

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 p
er

m
it.

 

hmp3r
Text Box
 14.




NRCA 2023 Annual Report Summary w/ Potential TN Reductions

Date: 4/30/2024

Average Average Potential
     FACILITY EOP Conc Flow TN Reduction

(mg/l) MGD (lbs)
Duke Energy Progress  - Lee 0.38 0.069

Craven County 1.43 0.861

Town of Farmville 1.46 1.021

Town of Cary, South 1.65 5.195

Town of Hillsborough 1.79 1.138

Contentnea MSD 1.79 1.683

Town of Cary, North 1.88 6.142

City of Raleigh - Little Creek 1.94 0.917

City of Wilson 1.95 8.026

City of Goldsboro, Pipes 01&02 2.20 8.607

City of Raleigh - Neuse River 2.28 49.936

City of Kinston (Regional) 2.34 3.825

Johnston County 2.40 5.257

City of Durham 2.51 9.223

SGWASA 2.54 1.538

Town of Benson 3.30 1.082 0.30 988

City of Havelock 3.57 1.264 0.57 2,193

Town of Snow Hill 3.66 0.243 0.66 2,707

City of New Bern 3.85 4.126 0.85 10,676

Town of LaGrange 4.16 0.309 1.16 1,091

Town of Apex 4.48 1.267 1.48 5,708

Town of Clayton 4.65 1.751 1.65 8,795

City of Raleigh - Smith Creek 4.95 2.377 1.95 14,110

CovationBio, Inc. 4.91 0.229 1.91 1,331

MCAS Cherry Point 5.39 1.258 2.39 9,152

Town of Kenly 5.52 0.375 2.52 2,877

Neuse Colony (Aqua) 7.72 0.251 4.72 3,606

CWS Systems, Inc. 17.23 0.325 14.23 14,078

Daily Average 2.44 107.551 76,326

Annual Average EOP Average Estuary Avg. Flow Avg. Estuary 
Report Values Conc. (mg/L) Lbs. MGD w/o Debit

2003 3.81 722,374 108.379

2004 3.38 558,777 101.203

2005 3.25 566,627 101.739

2006 3.12 542,205 102.970

2007 3.02 461,325 92.994

2008 3.41 489,798 91.005

2009 3.02 497,639 98.570

2010 2.98 584,398 * 101.909 527,275

2011 2.85 519,199 * 93.384 464,014

2012 2.80 540,892* 97.281 487,794

2013 2.62 514,847* 102.413 463,836

2014 2.71 568,387* 108.359 519,612

2015 3.03 610,915* 108.721 564,277

2016 2.87 593,145* 108.734 548,644

2017 2.53 491,822* 101.510 449,408

2018 2.54 556,567* 113.204 516,191

2019 2.33 481,011* 105.573 442,671

2020 2.54 516,645* 126.823 485,739

2021 2.50 564,859* 123.840 534,533

2022 2.44 456,385* 107.551 426,669

2023 2.51 509,441* 116.292 480,245

* Includes nitrogen debit for City of Raleigh's land application system

hmp3r
Text Box
 15.




NRCA 2010 Annual Report Summary w/ Potential TN Reductions

Date: 3/01/2011

Average  Average Potential
     FACILITY Conc  Flow TN Reduction

(mg/l)  MGD (lbs)
Progress Energy - Lee 0.88  2.927

Johnston County 1.50 3.923

Dupont-Kinston 1.85 0.246

Town of Cary, South 1.98  4.981

City of Kinston (Regional) 2.14 5.131

City of Raleigh - Neuse 2.48  43.738

MCAS Cherry Point 2.62  1.704

Town of Cary, North 3.00  5.812

City of Raleigh - Little Creek 3.10  0.642 0.10 195

City of Wilson 3.18  8.088 0.18 4,432

City of Goldsboro, Pipes 01&02 3.59 8.505 0.59 15,275

SGWASA 3.69 2.017 0.69 4,237

Town of Apex 3.93  2.394 0.93 6,777

Town of Farmville 4.00  1.253 1.00 3,814

Town of Clayton 4.11  1.724 1.11 5,825

Town of LaGrange 4.35 0.487 1.35 2,001

City of Raleigh - Smith Creek 4.94 1.231 1.94 7,270

City of New Bern 5.25  3.816 2.25 26,137

Town of Benson 6.59 1.009 3.59 11,027

Contentnea MSD 8.27  1.762 5.27 28,267

Town of Kenly 9.90  0.352 6.90 7,393

Neuse Colony (Aqua) 19.96  0.165 16.96 8,519

Daily Average 2.98  101.909 131,169
2009 181,650

Annual Average EOP Average Estuary Avg. Flow
Report Values Conc. (mg/L) Lbs. MGD

2003 3.81 722,374 108.379

2004 3.38 558,777 101.203

2005 3.25 566,627 101.739

2006 3.12 542 102.970

2007 3.02 461,325 92.994

2008 3.41 489,798 91.005

2009 3.02 497,639 98.570

2010 2.98 527,311 101.909

hmp3r
Text Box
 16.




0102030405060708090

024681012141618

19
95

19
96

19
97

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

CCP Rainfall (in)

Total Nitrogen, million lbs.

Ye
ar

To
ta

l N
itr

og
en

 L
oa

d 
at

 F
or

t B
ar

nw
el

l, 
St

at
io

n 
J7

85
00

00

N
RC

A 
TN

 (M
lb

s)
 to

 E
st

ua
ry

Fo
rt

 B
ar

nw
el

l T
N

 L
oa

d 
(M

lb
s)

Es
tu

ar
y 

TN
 T

M
D

L 
M

lb
s)

CC
P 

Ra
in

fa
ll 

(in
)

hmp3r
Text Box
 17.





